
 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 
Board of Directors 
 
Friday, March 2, 2018 
Following CAA Operations Committee Meeting 
Kent County Commission Chambers 
300 Monroe Avenue, NW, Grand Rapids, MI 
 
 
1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock  
 
2. Minutes of February 2, 2018        Action 
 
3. Committee Reports 
  
 A. Operations Committee 
   
 B. Finance Committee 
  i. Consolidated Financial Statement for Period Ending   Action 
   January 31, 2018 
  ii. SMG January 2018 Financial Statements –    Information 
   Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place® 
   
4. Hotel Study RFP Recommendation       Action 
 
5. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars         Rich MacKeigan 
 
6. Public Comment 
 
7. Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 

Next Meeting Date:  Friday, May 4, 2018 
Following CAA Finance Committee Meeting 



MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY  
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY 

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Friday, February 2, 2018 

 
 

Attendance  
  

Members Present:  Steve Heacock, Chairperson 
   Lew Chamberlin  
   Birgit Klohs 
   Richard Winn 
 
Members Absent: Rosalynn Bliss 
   Charlie Secchia 
   Floyd Wilson, Jr.  
    

 Staff/Others:  Wayman Britt   Kent County 
    Eric DeLong   City of Grand Rapids 
    Tim Gortsema   Grand Rapids Griffins 
    Chris Machuta   SMG 
    Rich MacKeigan  SMG 
    Doug Small   Experience Grand Rapids 
    Eddie Tadlock   SMG 
    Brad Thomas   Progressive AE 
    Susan Waddell   CAA 
    Richard Wendt   Dickinson Wright 
          
1. Call to Order  
 
Chairperson, Steve Heacock, called the meeting to order at 8:45 a.m.  Secretary/Treasurer, Richard Winn, 
recorded the meeting minutes.   
 
2. Minutes of Prior Meeting 
 
Motion by Ms. Klohs, support by Mr. Chamberlin, to approve the January 5, 2018, Minutes.  Motion 
carried. 
 
3. Committee Reports 
 

A. Operations Committee 
 
 i. Experience Grand Rapids Report 
 
Mr. Small provided an overview of the CVB’s recent bookings, sales activities, marketing efforts, and 
major bid presentations.  In December 2017, staff booked 11 state and national groups for DeVos Place®.  
Staff hosted 12 site visits in December and a total of 150 in 2017.  2017 was a record year for Kent 
County, with room revenue just shy of $211 million.  Room inventory increased 700 rooms in 2017 and 
the next increase will occur in 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting  
February 2, 2018 – 2 
 
 
 B. Finance Committee 
 
  i. Acceptance of December 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Motion:  Mr. Winn, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to accept the December 2017 Consolidated 
Financial Statements.  Motion carried. 

 
  ii. SMG December 2017 Van Andel Arena® and DeVos Place®  
   Financial Statements 
 
The SMG financial statements were included in the agenda packet as information items.   
 
  iii. Second Quarter Capital Roll Update 
 
The second quarter capital roll report was included in the agenda packet as an information item.   
 
  iv. Auto Parking System Periodic Reporting 
 
The quarterly report of City/County parking card utilization was included in the agenda packet as an 
information item.   
 
4. FY 2018 Budget Amendment 
 
Motion:  Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the FY 2018 Budget Amendment, 
as requested.  Motion carried. 

 
5. DeVos Performance Hall Recognition Signage 
 
Chair Heacock recommended approval for recognition signage to be installed in the foyer of DeVos 
Performance Hall to acknowledge Miner S. and Mary Ann Keller for their generosity, leadership in 
downtown revitalization, and promotion of public art.   
 
Motion:  Mr. Winn, supported by Ms. Klohs, moved to the recognition signage, as presented, and to 
authorize SMG to initiate production and installation of the signage, with the intent to host an 
appreciation event for Mrs. Keller to unveil the signage once complete.  Motion carried.   

 
6.  SMG Report and Facilities Calendars 
 
Mr. MacKeigan reported that he will be out of the office, attending a Pollstar conference next week.   
 
7. Public Comment 
 
None. 
 
8. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.   
 
 
 

     ______________________________________   
Richard A. Winn, Recording Secretary 



Page

Dashboard 1

Summary by Facility
Rolling Forecast 2
Year-to-Date Comparable 3
Trend Analysis 

Monthly Net Operating Proceeds - FY17 & FY18 4
Lagging 12-Month Comparison - 2/15 Through 1/18 5

Significant Notes 6

Administrative Accounts
Year-to-Date Comparable 7

Grand Rapids-Kent County
Convention/Arena Authority

Consolidated Financial Report
January 31, 2018



-1-

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 62                 61                 62                   17                   16                  15                           
Attendance 358,797        347,800        354,103          139,578          130,000         123,238                  
Event Income 2,546,367$   2,166,480$   2,202,396$     1,669,503$     1,344,317$    1,353,008$             

Prior Year Budget Actual Prior Year Budget Actual
Events 237               266               290                 63                   60                  89                           
Attendance 291,077        291,700        369,159          79,296            60,000           88,707                    
Event Income 2,950,747$   3,272,399$   3,865,045$     1,149,504$     1,143,000$    1,376,315$             

Prior Year Budget Actual
Operating Income (Loss) 1,219,921$     1,899,200$             
Capital/Repair/Replacement (1,578,734)      (1,581,284)     (1,688,647)              
Net - To/(From) on Fund Balance (358,813)$       (1,581,284)$   210,553$                (1)

*NOTES: (1):
      Unrestricted Fund Balance @ June 30, 2017 23,411,454$   

Van Andel Arena®

Financial Dashboard
Year-To-Date (7 Months)

January 31, 2018

DeVos Place®

Consolidated

All Events Concert

All Events Convention/Trade



-2-

FY 2017
7/1 - 1/31

Year-to-Date Roll Estimate* Budget Prior Year
Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 3,535,214$    2,367,327$    5,902,541$    5,862,420$    7,215,161$  
                    - Expenses - Facilities (2,408,492)     (2,061,764)    (4,470,256)    (4,417,724)    (4,384,253)   
                               - Base Management Fees (102,923)        (73,517)         (176,440)       (177,134)       (173,661)      
                               - Incentive Fee -                     (97,631)         (97,631)         (101,780)       (178,902)      
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 1,023,799      134,415         1,158,214      1,165,782      2,478,345    
   Parking 229,000         155,987         384,987         384,987         314,180       
   Pedestrian Safety (18,752)          (89,248)         (108,000)       (108,000)       (106,657)      
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 1,234,047      201,154         1,435,201      1,442,769      2,685,868    

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 3,905,813      2,953,812      6,859,625      6,337,310      6,491,239    
                   - Expenses - Facilities (3,683,248)     (2,401,832)    (6,085,080)    (5,979,448)    (6,016,985)   
                              - Base Management Fees (102,923)        (73,517)         (176,440)       (177,134)       (173,661)      
                              - Incentive Fee -                     (255,249)       (255,249)       (252,488)       (168,420)      
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 119,642         223,214         342,856         (71,760)         132,173       
   Parking 656,081         487,685         1,143,766      1,143,766      1,221,140    
   Pedestrian Safety (14,434)          (36,566)         (51,000)         (51,000)         (56,179)        
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 761,289         674,333         1,435,622      1,021,006      1,297,134    

Other
   Revenues 254,074         167,176         421,250         371,250         266,360       
   Expenses (350,210)        (578,663)       (928,873)       (928,873)       (708,397)      
     Net Other (96,136)          (411,487)       (507,623)       (557,623)       (442,037)      

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 1,899,200      464,000         2,363,200      1,906,152      3,540,965    

Capital Expenditures (1,688,647)     (2,620,875)    (4,309,522)    (4,385,000)    (2,359,728)   
Results Net of Capital Expenditures 210,553$       (2,156,875)$  (1,946,322)$  (2,478,848)$  1,181,237$  

*Updated estimate will be based on quarterly performance and projections for balance of year.  Next 
quarterly update to be provided with March financial report (5/4/18 Board meeting).

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary by Facility/Other

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018

FY 2018



-3-

Annual Year-To-Date

FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1 - 1/31 7/1 - 1/31 Change

Van Andel Arena
   Operating - Revenues 7,215,161$       5,862,420$         (18.7) $3,962,733 3,535,214$           (10.8)
                    - Expenses - Facilities (4,384,253)        (4,417,724)         (0.8) (2,485,056)         (2,408,492)            3.1
                               - Base Management Fees (173,661)           (177,134)            (2.0) (101,302)            (102,923)               (1.6)                 
                               - Incentive Fee (178,902)           (101,780)            43.1                -                          -                            -                    
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 2,478,345         1,165,782           - (53.0)               - 1,376,375           1,023,799             (25.6)
   Parking 314,180            384,987              22.5 155,823              229,000                47.0                
   Pedestrian Safety (106,657)           (108,000)            (1.3) (44,912)              (18,752)                 58.2                
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of VAA 2,685,868         1,442,769           (53.7) 1,487,286           1,234,047             (17.0)

DeVos Place Convention Center
   Operating - Revenues 6,491,239         6,337,310           (2.4)                 2,977,577           3,905,813             31.2
                   - Expenses - Facilities (6,016,985)        (5,979,448)         0.6 (3,304,203)         (3,683,248)            (11.5)
                              - Base Management Fees (173,661)           (177,134)            (2.0) (101,302)            (102,923)               (1.6)                 
                              - Incentive Fee (168,420)           (252,488)            (49.9)               -                          -                            -                    
   Net Operating Income (Loss) 132,173            (71,760)              (154.3) (427,928)            119,642                128.0
   Parking 1,221,140         1,143,766           (6.3) 408,770              656,081                60.5
   Pedestrian Safety (56,179)             (51,000)              9.2                  (18,943)              (14,434)                 23.8                
        Net Proceeds (Cost) of DVP 1,297,134         1,021,006           (21.3) (38,101)              761,289                1998.1

Other
   Revenues 266,360            371,250              39.4 152,469              254,074                66.6                
   Expenses (708,397)           (928,873)            (31.1) (381,733)            (350,210)               8.3
     Net Other (442,037)           (557,623)            (26.1)               (229,264)            (96,136)                 58.1

Total Net Proceeds/Operating 3,540,965         1,906,152           (46.2)               1,219,921           1,899,200             55.7                

Capital/Repair Expenditures (2,359,728)        (4,385,000)         (1)  (85.8) (1,578,734)         (1,688,647)            (7.0)
Results Net of Capital Expenditures 1,181,237$       (2,478,848)$       (209.9)             (358,813)$          210,553$              158.7              

(1) Includes a budget amendment, adpoted on February 5th, adding $500,000 to the DVP Door Replacement Project.  

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Budget Summary by Facility/Other

Financial Trends for Year Ending June 30, 2018



-4-



-5-



-6-

Van Andel Arena®
•      Page 1 - Fifteen concerts generated $1,353,008 in event revenue, a decrease of (19.0%) from

prior year (17 concerts) of $1,669,503.
•        Page 3 - Net proceeds of $1,234,047 decreased by (17.0%) from prior year of $1,487,286.

DeVos Place®
•      Page 1 - Convention/trade show business generated $1,376,315 in event revenue, an

increase of +19.7% from prior year (attendance increased from 79,296 to 88,707) of $1,149,504.
•        Page 3 - Net "proceeds" of +$761,289 increased by +1,998.1% from prior year Net Proceeds

of ($38,101).

Significant Notes



-7-

FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage FY 2017 FY 2018 Percentage
Final Budget Change 7/1-1/31 7/1/-1/31 Change

Other
Revenues

Interest/Capital Contr. 176,908$     286,250$     61.8             94,451$           144,411$     52.9             
Miscellaneous 89,452         135,000       50.9             58,018             109,663       89.0             

266,360       421,250       (2)       58.2             152,469           254,074       66.6             
Expenses

Marketing (CVB/Sports) 125,000       200,000       60.0             100,000           75,000         (25.0)            
Diversity Initiative 68,077         150,000       120.3           21,152             32,594         54.1             
Wages/Benefits 129,780       131,468       1.3               61,071             70,784         15.9             
Professional Services 61,715         65,500         6.1               34,037             44,865         31.8             
DID Assessment 38,405         55,422         44.3             38,405             40,254         4.8               
Food & Beverage Repairs -                   40,000         100.0+ -                      -                   -                 
Consulting Services 117,709       150,000       (1) 27.4             49,654             18,713         (62.3)            
Landscaping 14,001         25,000         78.6             10,376             18,146         74.9             
Procurement of Art 28,941         30,000         3.7               26,719             8,056           (69.8)            
Insurance 17,238         21,483         24.6             21,062             25,084         19.1             
Supplies/Other 107,531       60,000         (44.2)            19,257             16,714         (13.2)            

708,397 928,873       31.1             381,733           350,210       8.3               

Net Proceeds - Operating (442,037)$    (507,623)$    (19.3)            (229,264)$       (96,136)$      58.1             
Notes:

(1) Includes SMG $33,355 and $116,645 for hotel study.

Actual

Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Administrative Accounts

Net Other Detail

Annual

31-Jan-18



































 

Van Andel Arena® 
DeVos Place® 
 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:    CAA Board of Directors  

From:   Richard MacKeigan 

Date:    February 15, 2018 

Re:     Hotel Study RFP Recommendation  

             
Since 2015, a task force that included Steve Heacock, Rick Winn, Charlie Secchia, and myself 
have been exploring ways to convert the underutilized DeVos Place® Monroe Avenue meeting 
rooms into high-yield spaces that allow greater street activation.  The group engaged the services 
of Progressive AE to design a solution.  Project goals included creating a financial catalyst to 
generate revenue, creating an urban corridor that enlivens Monroe Avenue and the skywalk, and 
creating a destination that is synergistic with the convention center and its future opportunities.  
The team added Rockford Construction to gain a developer’s perspective for a revised study 
scope that would encompass the building’s highest and best use. 
 
Grand Action’s 2016 destination asset study recommended a new 350-500 room hotel attached 
or adjacent to the convention center, as well as expansion of the convention center be explored as 
a near term goal.  Based on this recommendation, the task force drew up a design concept for a 
24-story, 400-room, full-service upscale convention hotel.  The CAA Board took action, at its 
April 2017 meeting, to move forward with a feasibility study.  At the June 2017 meeting, the 
CAA Board indicated it would like to include a hotel study for the Van Andel Arena®, as well.  
A hotel and conference center behind the Arena would enable Experience Grand Rapids and 
SMG to book additional conventions.  At that meeting, the Board allocated $125,000 for 
consulting services to cover hotel studies for Monroe Avenue and the Van Andel Arena®, 
approved development of an RFP, and authorized me to pursue the option of combining the 
Monroe hotel study with a convention center study.  Subsequent discussions about the need to 
expand the convention center muddled the hotel issue, and it was decided to bifurcate the two.   
 
Once the RFP was completed in December 2017, a number of stakeholders reviewed the RFP for 
thoroughness.  The RFP was sent to 10 professional convention center consultant organizations, 
on January 5, 2018.  The deadline to submit proposals was January 31, 2018, and five very 
qualified firms responded (listed below with their estimated costs): 
 

• CSL International       $88,722 
• Hunden Strategic Partners     $68,000 
• HVS Convention, Sports & Entertainment Facilities  $49,450 
• Johnson Consulting      $74,500 
• Jones, Lang, LaSalle      $90,000 



 
All proposals are within budget.  In addition to local staff review, Senior SMG Corporate Staff, 
as well as Senior SMG Field Staff, familiar with the process of hotel development, were asked to 
look over the proposals. All agreed that all of the firms are well positioned to do the work. 
 
Based on the evaluation process results, I am recommending that the CAA engage the services of 
HVS.  While all the firms could do the work, and do the work well, HVS is best suited for our 
specific needs.  They have completed over 30 projects in the Grand Rapids market since 2010 
and all in the “Hotel Study” realm.  Additionally, HVS has extensive experience dealing with 
‘headquarters hotel’ projects as well as ‘hotel districts’, both of which match up well with our 
needs. 

 
HVS is the global professional services leader on hospitality intelligence.  It has a team of more 
than 300 people located in over 50 offices throughout the world who specialize in all types of 
hospitality assets, including hotels, restaurants, casinos, shared ownership lodging, mixed-use 
developments, and golf courses, as well as conventions, sports, and entertainment facilities.  
SMG corporate has extensive experience with HVS and is confident that they will efficiently 
provide comprehensive and practical advice.   
 
HVS can also provide an Economic Impact Analysis and provide Development Assistance if we 
desire.  The Economic Impact Analysis would compare current conditions (no further hotel 
development) as well as if a hotel were to be built.  The Development Assistance could include 
help selecting a developer, operator, RFP/Q development, negotiation assistance, and other. 
 
While an extra cost, the overall fee would still be within budgeted amounts.  The Economic 
Impact Analysis is quoted at $8,750 and the Development Assistance would be dependent upon 
specific work required. 
 
I am recommending the CAA enter into an agreement with HVS to perform the study and would 
ask the CAA take action to approve.  
 
 
 
 














































































	Agenda.CAA
	Board of Directors
	Friday, March 2, 2018
	1. Call to Order          Steve Heacock
	2. Minutes of February 2, 2018        Action


	February.2018
	Friday, February 2, 2018
	Attendance
	i. Acceptance of December 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements


	January 2018.
	Cover Sheet
	Dashboard
	Roll
	Consolidated Statement
	Monthly Net Proceeds
	Lagging 36 Months
	Significant Notes
	Administrative Accounts

	SMG Financial Statement.January 2018
	Memo - Hotel Study RFP Recommendation
	Hotel Proposal-HVS

